
  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

Monday, 11 January 2021 at 6.30 p.m., Online 'Virtual' Meeting - 
https://towerhamlets.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 

This meeting is open to the public to view. 
Members:   
Chair: Councillor James King  
Vice Chair: Councillor Bex White  Scrutiny Lead for Children and Education 
  
Councillor Faroque Ahmed Scrutiny Lead for Community Safety & 

Environment 
Councillor Marc Francis  

Councillor Ehtasham Haque Scrutiny Lead for Housing and Regeneration 

Councillor Denise Jones  

Councillor Gabriela Salva Macallan Scrutiny Lead for Health and Adults 

Councillor Leema Qureshi Scrutiny Lead for Resources and Finance 

Councillor Andrew Wood  

  
Co-opted Members:   
Halima Islam Co-Optee 
James Wilson Co-Optee 
  
Deputies:  
Councillor Peter Golds, Councillor Zenith Rahman, Councillor Mohammed Pappu and Councillor 
John Pierce 
 

[The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members] 
 

Contact for further enquiries: 
David Knight, Democratic Services 
1st Floor, Town Hall, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 
London, E14 2BG 
Tel: 020 7364 4878 
E-mail: david.knight@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Web: http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 

Scan this code for 
the electronic 
agenda: 

 
 

Page 1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Public Information 

 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.   
 
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date. 
Agendas are available on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.   

 
QR code for 
smart phone 
users. 

 
 

SECTION ONE WARD PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     

 To receive any apologies for absence.   

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTEREST AND OTHER 
INTERESTS  

 7 - 8 

  

Members are reminded to consider the categories of 
interest in the Code of Conduct for Members to determine 
whether they have an interest in any agenda item and any 
action they should take. For further details, please see the 
attached note from the Monitoring Officer.  
 
Members are reminded to declare the nature of the interest 
and the agenda item it relates to. Please note that 
ultimately it’s the Members’ responsibility to declare any 
interests form and to update their register of interest form 
as required by the Code.  
 
If in doubt as to the nature of your interest, you are advised 
to seek advice prior to the meeting by contacting the 
Monitoring Officer or Democratic Services  

  

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  All Wards 9 - 20 

 To: 
 

1. Confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee held on 14th December, 

  

Page 2



 
 
 
 
 
 

2020 (To be received prior to the meeting); and 
2. Note the Pre-Decision Scrutiny Questions 

presented to Cabinet on 16th December, 2020 
(Attached). 

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  All Wards  

 To receive any petitions (to be notified at the meeting).   

5. FORTHCOMING DECISIONS  All Wards 21 - 46 

 To note the forthcoming Decision Plan.   

6. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS 'CALLED IN'    

 No decisions of the Mayor in Cabinet on 16th December, 
2020 in respect of unrestricted reports on the agenda were 
‘called in’. 

  

7. CABINET - WEDNESDAY, 6TH JANUARY, 2021  All Wards  

7 .1 The Council’s 2021-22 Budget Report and Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 2021-24   

All Wards  

 The Committee is asked to note and comment on the 
Cabinet report that outlines the Council’s Budget for 2021-
22 and MTFS 2021-24 
 
Click here 

  

7 .2 Fees and Charges 2021-22   All Wards  

 The Committee is asked to note and comment on the 
Cabinet report that details the proposed changes to fees and 
charges across the Council for the financial year 2021-22.  
 

Click here  

  

8. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF UNRESTRICTED 
CABINET PAPERS  

  

 To consider and agree pre-decision scrutiny 
questions/comments to be presented to Cabinet. 
  
(Time allocated – 30 minutes). 
 
 
 

  

Page 3

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=720&MId=11869
http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=720&MId=11869


 
 
 
 
 
 

9. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS 
WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  

  

 To consider any other unrestricted business that the Chair 
considers to be urgent. 

  

 

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC     

 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the 
agenda the Committee is recommended to adopt the 
following motion: 
 

“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the press 
and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
for the consideration of the Section Two business on the 
grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 
1972.” 
 

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (Pink Papers) 
 

The exempt committee papers in the agenda will contain 
information, which is commercially, legally or personally 
sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  If you 
do not wish to retain these papers after the meeting, please 
hand them to the Committee Officer present. 

  

 

SECTION TWO WARD PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

11. EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES  All Wards  

 Nil items   

12. EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS 'CALLED 
IN'  

All Wards  

 No decisions of the Mayor in Cabinet 16th December, 2020 
in respect of exempt/ confidential reports on the agenda 
were ‘called in’. 

  

13. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF EXEMPT/ 
CONFIDENTIAL) CABINET PAPERS  

  

 To consider and agree pre-decision scrutiny   

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 
 

questions/comments to be presented to Cabinet. 
  
(Time allocated 15 minutes). 

14. ANY OTHER EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL 
BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS 
URGENT  

  

 To consider any other exempt/ confidential business that 
the Chair considers to be urgent. 

  

 
 

Next Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Monday, 25 January 2021 at 6.30 p.m. to be held in Online 'Virtual' Meeting - 
https://towerhamlets.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS AT MEETINGS– NOTE FROM THE 

MONITORING OFFICER 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Code of Conduct for 

Members at Part C, Section 31 of the Council’s Constitution  

(i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) 

You have a DPI in any item of business on the agenda where it relates to the categories listed in 

Appendix A to this guidance. Please note that a DPI includes: (i) Your own relevant interests; 

(ii)Those of your spouse or civil partner; (iii) A person with whom the Member is living as 

husband/wife/civil partners. Other individuals, e.g. Children, siblings and flatmates do not need to 

be considered.  Failure to disclose or register a DPI (within 28 days) is a criminal offence. 

Members with a DPI, (unless granted a dispensation) must not seek to improperly influence the 

decision, must declare the nature of the interest and leave the meeting room (including the public 

gallery) during the consideration and decision on the item – unless exercising their right to address 

the Committee.  

DPI Dispensations and Sensitive Interests. In certain circumstances, Members may make a 

request to the Monitoring Officer for a dispensation or for an interest to be treated as sensitive. 

(ii) Non - DPI Interests that the Council has decided should be registered – 

(Non - DPIs) 

You will have ‘Non DPI Interest’ in any item on the agenda, where it relates to (i) the offer of gifts 

or hospitality, (with an estimated value of at least £25) (ii) Council Appointments or nominations to 

bodies (iii) Membership of any body exercising a function of a public nature, a charitable purpose 

or aimed at influencing public opinion. 

Members must declare the nature of the interest, but may stay in the meeting room and participate 
in the consideration of the matter and vote on it unless:  
 

 A reasonable person would think that your interest is so significant that it would be likely to 
impair your judgement of the public interest.  If so, you must withdraw and take no part 
in the consideration or discussion of the matter. 

(iii) Declarations of Interests not included in the Register of Members’ Interest. 
 

Occasions may arise where a matter under consideration would, or would be likely to, affect the 
wellbeing of you, your family, or close associate(s) more than it would anyone else living in 
the local area but which is not required to be included in the Register of Members’ Interests. In 
such matters, Members must consider the information set out in paragraph (ii) above regarding 
Non DPI - interests and apply the test, set out in this paragraph. 
 

Guidance on Predetermination and Bias  
 

Member’s attention is drawn to the guidance on predetermination and bias, particularly the need to 
consider the merits of the case with an open mind, as set out in the Planning and Licensing Codes 
of Conduct, (Part C, Section 34 and 35 of the Constitution). For further advice on the possibility of 
bias or predetermination, you are advised to seek advice prior to the meeting.  
 

Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992 - Declarations which restrict 
Members in Council Tax arrears, for at least a two months from voting  
 

In such circumstances the member may not vote on any reports and motions with respect to the 
matter.   

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



Further Advice contact: Asmat Hussain, Corporate Director, Governance and Monitoring Officer, 
Tel: 0207 364 4800. 
 

APPENDIX A: Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 

Subject  Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 
 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit 
(other than from the relevant authority) made or provided 
within the relevant period in respect of any expenses 
incurred by the Member in carrying out duties as a member, 
or towards the election expenses of the Member. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or 
a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) 
and the relevant authority— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or 
works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in 
the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 
(b) either— 
 
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 
 

 
 

Page 8



 

If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
Matthew Mannion, Democratic Services 
Tel: 020 7364 4651, E-mail: matthew.mannion@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

 

 

Meeting of the  

 

CABINET 
__________________________________ 

 
Wednesday, 16 December 2020 at 5.30 p.m. 

_______________________________________ 
 

TABLED PAPERS 
______________________________________ 

 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

 
5 .1 Chair's Advice of Key Issues or Questions   
 

 

 Pre-Decision Scrutiny Questions and officer responses. 
 

3 to 12 

 
 

Page 1Page 9

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 

 

 

  

Meeting of the  

 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY QUESTIONS 
(PDSQ) FOR CABINET 

 
Wednesday, 16 December 2020 at 5.30 p.m. 

 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBERS 

 

 

6.2 ADOPTION OF THE HIGH DENSITY LIVING 

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT  

3 - 6  

6.3 SPITALFIELDS NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN – 

VALIDATION OF SUBMISSION  

7 - 8  

6.4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE 

OMBUDSMAN, DETERMINATION OF OUTCOME  

9 - 10  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1Page 3

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4Page 12



PDSQ for Cabinet 

6.2 Adoption of the High Density Living Supplementary Planning Document 

Question Response 

Why does the term “Grenfell” not appear 
in the document given the enormous 
consequences of what we continue to 
discover about dense buildings, the word 
“Fire” appears only 3 times in 214 pages. 
The words crime, terrorism, bomb, 
CCTV, social media, broadband, internet, 
wi-fi, money, £, financial also do not 
appear anywhere and the term service 
charge appears only twice in Council 
written text.  
 

It is important to understand the scope of planning policy and Supplementary 
planning documents (SPDs) in particular. As per planning legislations, SPDs should 
build upon and provide more detailed advice or guidance on policies in an adopted 
development plan (which is the London Borough of Tower Hamlets Local Plan and 
London Plan). As they do not form part of the development plan, they cannot 
introduce new planning policies into the development plan. In regard to the various 
topics highlighted in the question we provide more detailed responses below: 
 
Fire 
It is not the role of planning policy (Local Plan and SPDs) to cover the detail of fire 
matters. This is the remit of Building Regulations. It was agreed that fire was not 
included in the scope of this documents as planners are not fire safety experts and it 
would be important that the right expertise was used to provide guidance on these 
matters, which are often complex and affected by a range of variables.  
 
As part of the Hackett review the government is updating building regulations on fire 
safety. At a London level they intend to publish a London Plan that includes a policy 
on fire safety however it does not provide advice on the actual design, it is more 
about ensuring that the issues are taken account of at the early stage – again 
because it is not for Planning to provide advice on fire safety, that responsibility sits 
with government through the building control regs.  
 
Crime/terrorism/bomb/CCTV 
The term used in the document to refer to criminal activity is ASB or anti-social 
behaviour which, as recognised in the document and supporting text/evidence, is an 
important challenge in this form of developments. This SPD addresses ASB through 
design recommendations that will minimize opportunities for crime and ASB. These 
include, location of communal amenity areas in prominent visible locations where 
residents will frequently be passing, in addition to having concierges in prominent 
locations with views on lobbies and communal spaces. Guidance on the design of 

P
age 3

A
genda Item

 1

P
age 5

P
age 13



PDSQ for Cabinet 

public realm and security features have been provided in the section around the 
building. We do not consider it appropriate for a planning policy document to stipulate 
what tools the police and responsible authorities should use to manage crime, 
terrorism and ASB. As a result this SPD does not include specific references to 
design requirements related to these.  
 
Social media 
The management of buildings falls outside the scope of this document and planning. 
However given the importance of management, recommendations have been added 
in the form of further considerations. In particular there are recommendations for the 
setting up of Residents Associations and management of spaces through online 
platforms. 
 
Broadband/internet/wi-fi 
The document recognises the increasing trend of working from home. Unfortunately 
Tower Hamlets planning does not currently have the remit to control the rollout of 
WIFI systems in areas or within buildings.  
  
Money/Financial/Service charge 
In the SPD reference to cost and service charges are made throughout the document 
to recognise its implication in the everyday life of residents and managers at high 
density developments. It is agreed that service charges and other cost implications 
are a large part of life in HDL, and this was identified through the survey. The SPD 
aims to avoid some of the service charge implications by suggesting design solutions 
that minimize management cost, such as for example location of communal amenity 
spaces and play spaces closer to the ground, with greater levels of overlook to avoid 
more extensive management requirements. Concierges were identified as key to 
support residents quality but service charge implications are recognised in the 
document. Where these cannot be provided, due to service charge implications, 
ensuring some management presence through better location of staff facilities is 
encouraged. Economies of scale in management resources are encouraged. From 
case studies when a developer continues to manage the scheme or when one 

P
age 4

P
age 6

P
age 14



PDSQ for Cabinet 

management company manages both affordable and private were most effective. 
 

The SPD contains no specific policy 
recommendations as a response to 
COVID-19 or coronavirus type 
pandemics in the future despite the 
consultation period including a large part 
of the 1st lockdown and clear evidence 
about the importance of space, filtration, 
ventilation and surface materials as a 
response to pandemics. Why? 
 

Covid-19 has led to places and spaces being used differently and is likely to lead to 
long term changes in how cities and buildings function.  Timing and project scope did 
not allow for complete restructure in response to the crisis and in the early stages of 
the pandemic, during the preparation of the document, there was a lack of sufficient 
published evidence. However, the key aim of the HDL and much of the guidance has 
become even more important in light of the pandemic and in the SPD we emphasized 
the importance of generous circulation spaces, increasing natural ventilation and 
provision of usable private amenity spaces. There are also design guidelines 
recommending the use of robust materials that are easy to clean in corridors and 
other communal areas. 
 

Will any omissions be dealt with in the 
Tall Building SPD or does LBTH not 
consider these material issues? 
 

It is not anticipated that the Tall Buildings SPD will consider these, for the reasons 
given above. 
 
On the broader potential implications of covid on how cities and places are used and 
function, this will be something that will be considered as part of any future review of 
the Plan.  

 

P
age 5

P
age 7

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 8

P
age 16



PDSQ for Cabinet 

6.3 Spitalfields Neighbourhood Plan – Validation of Submission 

Question  Information Question 
Response  

What is the financial cost of the 
administration of the Neighbourhood Plan 
development process to the council? 
 

The Neighbourhood Plan development process would have administration costs to the 
Council, associated with: 

- senior officer guidance and support throughout, along with expertise from other 
services, such as legal, design & heritage and development management – 
depending on the nature of the policies being drafted 

- an examination in public (EiP) 
- a referendum 

 
The senior officer time committed to the development process of a plan is dependent on the 
content, complexity and length of the Neighbourhood Plan.  It should be noted that, before a 
Neighbourhood Plan can be progressed, a forum and area would need to be 
established.  For each of these stages, the Council is required to provide support and advice. 
 

Council’s experience of an Examination in Public (EiP) for a Neighbourhood Plan has 
been at the cost of approximately £7,000.  This would vary according to the number 
of days required for the EiP as well as whether the Inspector requests hearings or 
not. 
 
A referendum is estimated to cost £20,000. 
 
It should be noted that for each forum and area designated, there is a grant awarded 
to the Local Authority of £5,000, and for a referendum there is financial support of 
£20,000 from the Government to pay for each referendum (regardless of size or other 
factors).  
 

 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 2

P
age 9

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 10

P
age 18



PDSQ for Cabinet 

6.4 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman, Determination of Outcome 

Question Response 

6.4a Appendix 1 - Draft report by the Local 
Government and Social Care 
 
How many people applied for disabled 
parking bays in 2018 and 2019 (or similar 
period) and were either approved or 
rejected?  
 

 
 
 
There has been a total of 197 applications between 2018/19 
 
Approved = 76 
Rejected = 82 
Closed = 39 as they did not provide further evidence required upon request. 

How many previous applicants who have 
been refused a parking bay over the past 
year have now been written to by the parking 
team informing them of the changes to its 
policy?  
 

We wrote to a total of fifty applicants who were refused a parking bay over the past year. 

How many of these residents have 
subsequently had a fresh mobility 
assessment which has resulted in their being 
assigned a personalised disabled parking 
bay?  
 

To date three of the applicants that were written to have made fresh applications, however 
two have off street parking and therefore do not qualify and a further one has been rejected 
as they did not have 12pts on their PIP (personal independence payment) of DLA mobility. 
None of these cases had hidden disabilities. 

The date of the draft report from the 
Ombudsman is August 2020, thus 3 months 
have already elapsed. Have the agreed 
actions been taken? Have there been any 
subsequent appeals following letters to all 
those who have recently applied for a 
personal disabled bay? 
 

We have taken all the agreed actions including the installation of a bay ahead of time. 
 
There have been no appeals following the letter sent to previous applicants. 

It is recommended to contact applicants who 
have been refused a parking bay and inform 
them of the changes to its policy.  
 
Could the changes have cost implications 

20.11.20 as recommended by the ombudsman we wrote to all applicants who had previously 
been refused a bay informing them that they could reapply following changes to the policy. 
The only cost implications are the Traffic Management Orders which will be combined with 
the current programme of current applications. 
The ombudsman action was for us to inform the previous applicants to reapply and not to 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 3

P
age 11

P
age 19



PDSQ for Cabinet 

and is there budget? Should applicants 
appeal against previous decisions and 
request the Council to install parking spaces 
for them and provide some compensation?  

appeal the decision. 

 

P
age 10

P
age 12

P
age 20



 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

THE FORWARD PLAN 
 
 

Published: 24 December 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

The Forward Plan is published 28 days before each Cabinet meeting.     
 

In addition, new issues and changes to existing issues will be published on the website as soon 
as they are known. 

 
The web pages also contain past Forward Plans and publication deadlines for future Plans. To 
visit the web pages go to http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1. 

 

 
Contact 
Officer: 
Email: 
Telephone: 
Fax No: 

 
Matthew Mannion 
Democratic Services 
matthew.mannion@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
020 7364 4651 
020 7364 3232 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:matthew.mannion@towerhamlets.gov.uk


Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 
2 
 

Tower Hamlets Council  
Forthcoming Decisions Plan 

 
What is this document? 

The Forthcoming Decisions Plan (or ‘Forward Plan’) contains information on significant 

decisions that the Council expects to take over the next few months. 

As a minimum this will include notice of: 

 All Key Decisions to be taken by the Mayor or Cabinet. 

o This could include decisions taken at public meetings or taken individually at 

other times. 

 Budget and Policy Framework Decisions (for example the Budget Report itself and 

major policies to be agreed by Council as set out in the Constitution) 

In addition the Council aims to publish all other decisions to be taken by the Mayor and/or 

Cabinet. 

Key Decisions 

The Council is required to publish notice of all key decisions at least 28 days before they are 

taken by the Executive. Key decisions are all those decisions which involve major spending, or 

savings, or which have a significant impact on the local community. The precise definition of a 

key decision adopted by Tower Hamlets is contained in Section 3 of the Constitution. Key 

Decisions can be taken by the Mayor, the Mayor in Cabinet or an officer if it has been 

expressly delegated. 

Publication of Forthcoming Decisions 

Individual notices of new Key Decisions will be published on the website as they are known on 

the ‘Forthcoming Decisions’ page, whilst this ‘Forthcoming Decisions Plan’ collating these 

decisions will be published regularly, as a minimum at least, 28 days before each Cabinet 

meeting. The Plan will be published on the Council’s website and will also be available to view 

at the Town Hall and Libraries, Ideas Centres and One Stop Shops if required. 

Urgency 

If, due to reasons of urgency, a Key Decision has to be taken where 28 days’ notice have not 

been given. Notice will be published (on the website) as early as possible and Urgency 

Procedures as set out in the Constitution have to be followed. 

Make your views known 

The most effective way for the public to make their views known about a Forthcoming 

Decisions is to contact the lead officer, or Cabinet Member (where stated), listed. You can also 

view the Council’s Consultation Calendar, which lists all the issues on which the Council and its 

partners are consulting. 

 

Page 22

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=663&Year=0&info=1&MD=Constitution
https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/lgnl/council_and_democracy/consultations/consultations.aspx


Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 
3 
 

Information about the Decision Makers 

Further information on the Mayor and Members of the Cabinet can be found on the Council’s 

website. 

Notice of Intention to Conduct Business in Private 
The Council is also required to give at least 28 days’ notice if it wishes to consider any of the 
reports on the agenda of an Executive meeting (such as Cabinet) in private session. The last 
row of each item below will indicate any proposal to consider that item in private session. 
Should you wish to make any representations in relation to item being considered in private 
please contact Democratic Services on the contact details listed on the front page. 
 
The notice may reference a paragraph of Section 12A of the 1972 Local Government Act. In 
summary those paragraphs refer to the following types of exempt information (more 
information is available in the Constitution): 
 
1. Information relating to any individual  
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 

handling the information)  
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in 

connection with any labour relations matters arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and 
employees of, or office holders under, the authority. 

5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal 
proceedings.  

6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes:- 
a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a 

person; or 
b) to make an order or direction under any enactment.  

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or 
prosecution of crime.  

 
 
Contact Details for this Plan 

 
Contact 
Officer: 
Email: 
Telephone: 
 

Matthew Mannion 
Head of Democratic Services 
matthew.mannion@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
020 7364 4651 
 

Page 23

http://democracy.towerhamlets.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:matthew.mannion@towerhamlets.gov.uk


Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 
4 
 

Contents: 
 

Decision Title Due Date Page No. 

Adoption of the High Density Living Supplementary 
Planning Document 

16/12/20 19 

Amending the Policy on Housing Succession 27/01/21 16 

Approval of extension to existing Servelec contract and 
SaaS hosting arrangement 

27/01/21 12 

*Bow bus gateway and timed closures exemptions 
considerations 

27/01/21 22 

*Budget monitoring report 2020-21 as at 30th November 
2020 (period 8) 

27/01/21 24 

Calculation of Council Tax Base 2021-22 06/01/21 15 

Contracts Forward Plan 2020/21 – Quarter Three 27/01/21 18 

Fees and Charges 2021-22 06/01/21 15 

George Green’s Almshouses - Transfer of RTB grant to 
new Charitable Incorporated Organisation 

27/01/21 13 

Land at Malcolm and Mantus Road; disposal to Tower 
Hamlets Community Housing 

16/12/20 19 

Outcome of consultation on revised approach to day 
support in adult social care 

03/03/21 10 

Procurement of the Leisure Management Contract 27/01/21 14 

*Proposal for variation to the AEG Presents: Victoria Park 
Commercial Concession Tender and Major Events Policy 

06/01/21 24 

Report and Recommendations following Housing 
Regeneration Scrutiny Sub-committee Challenge session 
on 2nd March 2020 ‘The Homelessness Reduction Act 
(2017) – One year on’ 

27/01/21 17 

Spitalfields Neighbourhood Plan – Validation of 
Submission 

16/12/20 21 

Strategic performance and delivery reporting – Q3 
2020/21 

03/03/21 11 

The Council’s 2021-22 Budget Report and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2021-24 

24/02/21 20 

• Report on the outcome of public representations 
received in response to the statutory Notice on the 
proposal to amalgamate Cubitt Town Infants and Junior 
Schools • Decision on Amalgamation of Cubitt Town 
Infants and Junior Schools • Decision on Clo 

03/03/21 5 

• Report on the outcome of public representations 
received in response to the statutory proposal to close 
Cherry Trees Special School. • Decision on Closure 
of Cherry Trees Special School. 

03/03/21 7 

• Report on the outcome of public representations 
received in response to the statutory proposal to close 
Shapla Primary School • Decision on Closure of 
Shapla Primary School. 

03/03/21 6 

• Report on the outcome of public representations 
received in response to the statutory proposal to close St 
Matthias Primary School • Decision on Closure of St 
Matthias Primary School. 

03/03/21 9 

 
* New Issues published since the last Forward Plan 

Page 24



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 
5 
 

 

Title of Report 
 

• Report on the outcome of 
public representations received 
in response to the statutory 
Notice on the proposal to 
amalgamate Cubitt Town 
Infants and Junior Schools •
 Decision on 
Amalgamation of Cubitt Town 
Infants and Junior Schools •
 Decision on Closure of 
Cubitt Town Infants School 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision This report informs the council of the outcome of the four week period of public 
representation in response to the statutory notice on the proposal for the 
amalgamation (merger) of Cubitt Town Infants’ and Cubitt Town Junior Schools 
from April 2022. 
This would require the closure of Cubitt Town Infants School and extending the 
age range of Cubitt Town Junior School, to establish a 3FE entry, all-through 3-
11 Primary School.  
 
It recommends for the Mayor in cabinet to consider a decision on whether or not 
to formally proceed with plans for the schools’ merger that would take effect 
from the 1st April 2022. Cubitt Town Infants School would therefore officially 
close on 31st March 2022 
 
The report includes a summary of representations received and any responses 
made; risk and opportunities; officer’s recommendations; decisions available to 
the Mayor in Cabinet. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
03/03/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

TH Plan 1: A better deal for children and young people: aspiration, 
education and skills 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Children and Schools 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

Along with the general public, the following stakeholders were invited to make 
representations: 
Parents and carers, students, Roman Catholic and Church of England Dioceses, 
Council of Mosques, Head Teachers, school staff, school governors, 
neighbouring Local Authorities, the National Education Union. Secretary of State 
for Education. 

 
A stage one consultation was held in the Summer term 2020. This was followed 
by Cabinet on 21 October 2020, agreeing to publish a statutory notice and 
proposal, for a four week formal consultation between 16th November 2020 and 
16th December 2020. During this statutory consultation period all interested 

Page 25



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 
6 
 

stakeholders were invited to send any comments and or objections to the 
Council. The statutory notice was published at the schools’ and on the Council 
website and advertised in the Docklands & East London Advertiser. 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

YES 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Christine McInnes 
(Divisional Director, Education and Partnerships)  
christine.mcinnes@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

• Statutory Notice 
• Copies of all representations received in response to 
        the statutory proposal 
• Analysis of feedback from the statutory proposal 
• LA Pupil Projections 2020-2028 
• Report on support to be provided to school staff 
• Summary analysis on the current financial position of  
         both schools 
• Equalities Assessment (to be updated) 
 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

• Report on the outcome of 
public representations received 
in response to the statutory 
proposal to close Shapla 
Primary School • Decision 
on Closure of Shapla Primary 
School. 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
No 

Summary of Decision This report informs the council of the outcome of the four week period of public 
representation in response to the statutory notice on the proposal to close 
Shapla Primary School. 
 
It recommends for the Mayor in cabinet to consider a decision on whether or not 
to formally proceed with plans for Shapla Primary School to officially close on 
31st August 2021 
 
The report includes a summary of representations received and any responses 
made; risk and opportunities; officer’s recommendations; decisions available to 
the Mayor in Cabinet. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
03/03/21 

Page 26



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 
7 
 

Community Plan 
Theme 

TH Plan 1: A better deal for children and young people: aspiration, 
education and skills 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Children and Schools 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

Along with the general public, the following stakeholders were invited to make 
representations:  
Parents and carers, students, Roman Catholic and Church of England Dioceses, 
Council of Mosques, Head Teachers, school staff, school governors, 
neighbouring Local Authorities, the National Education Union. Secretary of State 
for Education.  

 
A stage one consultation was held in the Summer term 2020. This was followed 
by Cabinet on 21 October 2020, agreeing to publish a statutory notice and 
proposal, for a four week formal consultation between 16th November 2020 and 
16th December 2020. During this statutory consultation period all interested 
stakeholders were invited to send any comments and or objections to the 
Council. The statutory notice was published at the schools’ and on the Council 
website, and advertised in the Docklands & East London Advertiser. 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

YES 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Christine McInnes 
(Divisional Director, Education and Partnerships)  
christine.mcinnes@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

• Report on the outcome of public representations  
        received in response to the statutory proposal to close 
        Shapla Primary School 
• Decision on Closure of Shapla Primary School. 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

• Report on the outcome of 
public representations received 
in response to the statutory 
proposal to close Cherry Trees 
Special School. • Decision 
on Closure of Cherry Trees 
Special School. 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision This report presents the outcome of the four week period of public 
representation in response to the statutory notice on the proposal to close 
Cherry Trees Special School. 
 
It recommends for the Mayor in cabinet to consider a decision on whether or not 

Page 27



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 
8 
 

to formally proceed with plans for Cherry Trees Special School to officially close 
on 31st August 2021 
 
The report includes a summary of representations received and any responses 
made; risk and opportunities; officer’s recommendations; decisions available to 
the Mayor in Cabinet. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
03/03/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

TH Plan 1: A better deal for children and young people: aspiration, 
education and skills 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Children and Schools 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

Along with the general public, the following stakeholders were invited to make 
representations:  
Parents and carers, students, Roman Catholic and Church of England Dioceses, 
Council of Mosques, Head Teachers, school staff, school governors, 
neighbouring Local Authorities, the National Education Union. Secretary of State 
for Education.  

 
A stage one consultation was held in the Summer term 2020. This was followed 
by Cabinet on 25 November 2020, agreeing to publish a statutory notice and 
proposal, for a four week formal consultation between 4 December 2020 and 4 
January 2021. During this statutory consultation period all interested 
stakeholders were invited to send any comments and or objections to the 
Council. The statutory notice was published at the schools’ and on the Council 
website and advertised in the Docklands & East London Advertiser. 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

YES 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Christine McInnes 
(Divisional Director, Education and Partnerships)  
christine.mcinnes@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

• Statutory Notice  
• Copies of all representations received in response to 
        the statutory proposal  
• SEMH Policy 
• Analysis of feedback from the statutory proposal  
• Report on support to be provided to school staff 
• Summary analysis on the current financial position of 
        Cherry Trees Special School 
• Equalities Assessment (to be updated)  
 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Page 28



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 
9 
 

private session and if so 
why? 

Title of Report 
 

• Report on the outcome of 
public representations received 
in response to the statutory 
proposal to close St Matthias 
Primary School • Decision 
on Closure of St Matthias 
Primary School. 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision This report informs the council of the outcome of the four week period of public 
representation in response to the statutory notice on the proposal to close St 
Matthias Primary School. 
 
It recommends for the Mayor in cabinet to consider a decision on whether or not 
to formally proceed with plans for St Matthias Primary School to officially close 
on 31st August 2021 
 
The report includes a summary of representations received and any responses 
made; risk and opportunities; officer’s recommendations; decisions available to 
the Mayor in Cabinet. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
03/03/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

TH Plan 1: A better deal for children and young people: aspiration, 
education and skills 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Children and Schools 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

Along with the general public, the following stakeholders were invited to make 
representations:  
Parents and carers, students, Roman Catholic and Church of England Dioceses, 
Council of Mosques, Head Teachers, school staff, school governors, 
neighbouring Local Authorities, the National Education Union. Secretary of State 
for Education.  

 
A stage one consultation was held in the Summer term 2020. This was followed 
by Cabinet on 25 November 2020, agreeing to publish a statutory notice and 
proposal, for a four week formal consultation between 4 December 2020 and 4 
January 2021. During this statutory consultation period all interested 
stakeholders were invited to send any comments and or objections to the 
Council. The statutory notice was published at the schools’ and on the Council 
website and advertised in the Docklands & East London Advertiser. 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

YES 

Page 29



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

10 
 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Christine McInnes 
(Divisional Director, Education and Partnerships)  
christine.mcinnes@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

• Statutory Notice  
• Copies of all representations received in response to 
         the statutory proposal  
• Analysis of feedback from the statutory proposal  
• LA Pupil Projections 2020-2028  
• Report on support to be provided to school staff  
• Summary analysis on the current financial position of 
        St Matthias Primary School  
• Equalities Assessment (to be updated)  
 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Outcome of consultation on 
revised approach to day 
support in adult social care 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision This report will set out the outcome of a consultation on a new model of day 
support for adult social care and will seek approval on the final model. 
 
The report is a follow-up to the 28th October 2020 Cabinet report on day 
support. The October report described a new model with the following changes: 
 
1. To have fewer day centre service buildings overall 
2. To use day service buildings as community support hubs 
3. To help people who need adult social care to use a bigger range of daytime 
activities 
4. To support people to organise their own support through direct payments 
 
These proposals include previously agreed savings of £317,000 per year from 
2021-22 and proposes additional savings of £252,000 as part of the 2021-24 
Medium-Term Financial Strategy. 
 
Public consultation on these proposals ran from 9 November 2020 to 4 January 
2021. This item will describe the outcome of the consultation and will present 
final proposals for the future of day support in adult social care for agreement. 
 
As in the October report, there is a direct impact of these changes on the 
Council’s in-house day centres for older and disabled people (Riverside and 
Physical Disability Day Opportunities) and for people who need mental health 
support (Pritchards Road). 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
03/03/21 

Community Plan A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Page 30



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

11 
 

Theme 

Cabinet Member Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

To be outlined in report. 
 
Consultation proposals will be included as part of the item. 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

Yes.  An Equality Impact Assessment will be included in the report. 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Claudia Brown 
(Divisional Director of Adults Social Care)  Claudia.Brown@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

N/A 
 
 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Strategic performance and 
delivery reporting – Q3 2020/21 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
No 

Summary of Decision This report provides the Mayor in Cabinet with an update on the delivery and 
implementation of the council’s Strategic Plan. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
03/03/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Cabinet Member Mayor 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

N/A 
 
None - this is a performance and delivery update 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

No 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

Sharon Godman 
(Divisional Director, Strategy, Policy and Performance)  

Page 31



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

12 
 

information sharon.godman@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

None 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Approval of extension to 
existing Servelec contract and 
SaaS hosting arrangement 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision This report will request that the Mayor in Cabinet approve an extension to the 
existing Servelec contract. Servelec provide the Council with a case 
management solution utilised by Adults and Children’s Social Care. 
 
The financial value of the change of contract exceeds the threshold for 
delegated decisions.  

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
27/01/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

People are aspirational, independent and have equal access to 
opportunities 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Children and Schools, Cabinet Member for Resources and 
the Voluntary Sector, Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and 
Wellbeing 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

None 
 
None 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

No 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Richard Baldwin, Claudia Brown, Adrian Gorst 
(Divisional Director, Children's Social Care)  
richard.baldwin@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Divisional Director of Adults Social 
Care)  Claudia.Brown@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Divisional Director, IT)  
adrian.gorst@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 

None 

Page 32



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

13 
 

available? 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

George Green’s Almshouses - 
Transfer of RTB grant to new 
Charitable Incorporated 
Organisation 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision The organisation is changing its status from a charitable organisation to 
becoming a charity of the same name but constituted as a new Charitable 
Incorporated Organisation. They also wish to become a Registered Provider. As 
part of the registration process they require the Council’s approval to transfer the 
Right to Buy Grant previously issued to them by the Council to the new 
organisation. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
27/01/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Cabinet Member Statutory Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Housing 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

Legal Department and Committee Services Team 
 
Internal consultation 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

N/A 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Lindsey Gibson, Tracey St Hill, Nicole Layton, Karen Swift 
(Executive Support Relationship Manager)  
lindsey.gibson@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Principal RSL Partnerships Officer)  
tracey.sthill@towerhamlets.gov.uk, Executive Support Team Leader, Place  
Nicole.Layton@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Divisional Director, Housing and 
Regeneration)  Karen.Swift@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

LBTH Grant Agreement 
George Green’s Almshouses Trustees Report &   Financial Statements for year 
ending 31.3.2019. 
George Green’s Almshouses model Constitution of a Charitable Incorporated 
Organisation. 
 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Page 33



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

14 
 

private session and if so 
why? 

Title of Report 
 

Procurement of the Leisure 
Management Contract 
 

Ward 
All Wards; 
Bethnal Green 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision This report outlines the borough’s current leisure provision and seeks challenges 
created by Covid-19 In one or two sentences set out what the item is about The 
Leisure Management Contract (LMC) is responsible for the management and 
governance of the borough’s 6 leisure centres:  
• John Orwell Sports Centre  
• Mile End Park Leisure Centre & Stadium,  
• St. George’s Leisure Centre  
• Tiller Leisure Centre  
• Whitechapel Sports Centre &  
• York Hall Leisure Centre 
 
The LMC was awarded to GLL for a 15-year period in 2004. This contract 
expired in April 2019 and was extended for a further 3 years ending in April 2022 
following Cabinet approval in September 2017. 
 
This report seeks approval to re-procure the leisure management contract at the 
end of the existing contract term 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
27/01/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Culture, Arts and Brexit 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

Strategic Procurement Board, Place Directorate, London Sport, Sport England 
 
None 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

No. The existing leisure management contract ends in 2022 and re-procuring a 
new contract is a key decision with a cost in excess of £1 million that impacts all 
wards in the borough and requires Cabinet approval 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Judith St John 
(Divisional Director, Sports, Leisure and Culture)  
judith.stjohn@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

29th July 2020 Cabinet Report: Safe and Viable Reopening of Leisure centres 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 

Fully Exempt (the whole report will be exempt) 
 

Page 34



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

15 
 

private session and if so 
why? 

Title of Report 
 

Fees and Charges 2021-22 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision Fees and charges are reviewed annually as part of the financial and business 
planning process. This ensures that they are set at the appropriate level for the 
prevailing economic circumstances and represent good practice in terms of the 
Council’s aim to provide value for money. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
06/01/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Resources and the Voluntary Sector 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

The Mayor, Lead Member for Resources and Voluntary Sector; and the Chair of 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be consulted. 
 
The Mayor, Lead Member for Resources and Voluntary Sector; and the Chair of 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be consulted. 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

Full EIAs will not be required for any of the proposals as, if they are agreed, 
there will be no or a minimal impact on protected groups 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Kevin Bartle 
(Interim Corporate Director, Resources)  Kevin.Bartle@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

N/A 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Calculation of Council Tax Base 
2021-22 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision This report sets out the calculation of the Council Tax Base for 2021-22 as 
required by statute 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
06/01/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Page 35



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

16 
 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Resources and the Voluntary Sector 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

The Mayor, Lead Member for Resources and Voluntary Sector and the Chair of 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee will be consulted. 
 
The Mayor, Lead Member for Resources and Voluntary Sector and the Chair of 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee will be consulted. 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

N/A 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Kevin Bartle 
(Interim Corporate Director, Resources)  Kevin.Bartle@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

N/A 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Amending the Policy on 
Housing Succession 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision This report seeks to amend the Council’s policy on housing succession and 
replace it with a new succession policy that accords with regulatory 
requirements and best practice. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
27/01/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Cabinet Member Statutory Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Housing 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

N/A 
 
No consultation required on this decision 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

Yes, EQIA will be included as an appendix to the Cabinet report. 

Contact details for Lindsey Gibson, Nicole Layton, Mark Slowikowski, Karen Swift 

Page 36



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

17 
 

comments or additional 
information 

(Executive Support Relationship Manager)  
lindsey.gibson@towerhamlets.gov.uk, Executive Support Team Leader, Place  
Nicole.Layton@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Manager)  Mark.Slowikowski@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Divisional Director, 
Housing and Regeneration)  Karen.Swift@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

N/A 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Report and Recommendations 
following Housing Regeneration 
Scrutiny Sub-committee 
Challenge session on 2nd 
March 2020 ‘The Homelessness 
Reduction Act (2017) – One year 
on’ 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision This item submits the report and recommendations of the Housing and 
Regeneration Overview Scrutiny Sub-committee challenge session and the 
recommendations arising from the session for implementation. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
27/01/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Cabinet Member Statutory Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Housing 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

N/A 
 
N/A 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

N/A 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Una Bedford, Lindsey Gibson, Nicole Layton, Karen Swift 
Strategy and Policy Officer (Place)  Una.Bedford@towerhamlets.gov.uk, 
(Executive Support Relationship Manager)  
lindsey.gibson@towerhamlets.gov.uk, Executive Support Team Leader, Place  
Nicole.Layton@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Divisional Director, Housing and 
Regeneration)  Karen.Swift@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

Page 37



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

18 
 

 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

Appendix 1: Report of the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Sub-Committee 
‘The Homelessness Reduction Act (2017) – One year on’. 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Contracts Forward Plan 2020/21 
– Quarter Three 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision This report presents THE contracts being procured during quarter 4. The report 
also sets out the Contracts Forward Plan at Appendix 1 to the report. 
2. The report asks for confirmation that all contracts can proceed to contract 
award after tender. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
27/01/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

All Priorities 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Resources and the Voluntary Sector 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

As above 
 
Necessary consultation will be undertaken in accordance with the council’s 
policies and procedures. 
 
Where required, consultation with service users and stakeholders will be 
undertaken as part of the project and budget approval process.  

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

No. Contact specific EQIA is expected to be completed by respective contract 
owners as part of the Directorate approval 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Kevin Bartle 
(Interim Corporate Director, Resources)  Kevin.Bartle@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

Report and appendices include details of all contracts to be awarded. 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Page 38



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

19 
 

Title of Report 
 

Land at Malcolm and Mantus 
Road; disposal to Tower 
Hamlets Community Housing 
 

Ward 
Bethnal Green 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision The report proposes that an area of Council owned land is sold to Tower 
Hamlets Community Housing on a long lease in order to facilitate its future 
development for housing. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
16/12/20 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Cabinet Member Mayor 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

Finance, Legal, THH 
 
The land has the benefit of planning permission for redevelopment, which 
involved the usual consultation process. 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

N/A 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Vicky Clark, Lindsey Gibson, Nicole Layton, Ralph Million 
(Divisional Director for Growth and Economic Development)  
vicky.clark@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Executive Support Relationship Manager)  
lindsey.gibson@towerhamlets.gov.uk, Executive Support Team Leader, Place  
Nicole.Layton@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Senior Strategic Asset Manager, Place) 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

Site plan and heads of terms 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Adoption of the High Density 
Living Supplementary Planning 
Document 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision The High Density Living SPD provides supplementary guidance on the design of 
high density residential and mixed use development as set out in the new Local 
Plan to 2031 (adopted January 2020), in particular policy S.DH1- Delivering 
High Quality Design and policy D.DH7 - Density. Furthermore, the SPD seeks to 
help to deliver the Mayor’s manifesto pledges to improve the quality and fairness 
of housing and make development work for local people. 

Page 39



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

20 
 

The High Density Living SPD has been through an extensive preparation 
process that includes project scoping (April 2018-July 2018); evidence gathering 
-including a large resident survey, workshops and interviews with residents, 
Council services and other stakeholders- (from August 2018-January 2019); 
preparation of draft document (February 2019-July 2019); option testing 
(September-December 2019) and public consultation (February 2020-June 
2020). A wide range of community groups, residents, developers and other 
stakeholders made formal responses to the High Density Living SPD as part of 
the consultation process. 
It is now necessary to adopt the High Density Living SPD to further enable clear 
and robust guidance to inform and be implemented in development proposals 
which will ensure the quality of life of residents in high-density developments is 
delivered and in accordance with corporate and Council objectives and the 
development Plan (Local Plan and London Plan). 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
16/12/20 

Community Plan 
Theme 

TH Plan 3: Strong, resilient and safe communities 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Planning and Social Inclusion (Job Share) - Lead on 
Planning 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

Consultees are outlined in the Consultation and Engagement Report 
 
The Consultation process is outlined in the Consultation and Engagement 
Report 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

Yes it has. 
As a result of performing the QA checklist, the High Density Living SPD is not 
considered to have any adverse effects on people who share protected 
characteristics and no further actions are recommended at this stage.  The 
potential impacts will be reconsidered in light of the outcomes of the proposed 
public consultation. 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Lucía Cerrada 
High Density Development Project Manager  
Lucia.Cerrada@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

1 - High Density Living Supplementary Planning Document 
2 - Equalities Impact Assessment 
3 - Consultation and Engagement Report 
 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

The Council’s 2021-22 Budget 
Report and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2021-24 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Page 40



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

21 
 

Summary of Decision This report sets out the draft budget for the financial year 2021-22. 
 
The report reviews and updates the assumptions made in setting the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for the years 2020-23 and incorporates a new 
financial year, 2023-24, to maintain the Council’s three-year MTFS. 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Council 
24/02/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A dynamic outcomes-based Council using digital innovation and 
partnership working 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Resources and the Voluntary Sector 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

The Mayor, Lead Member for Resources and Voluntary Sector; and the Chair of 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be consulted. 
 
The Mayor, Lead Member for Resources and Voluntary Sector; and the Chair of 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be consulted. 
 
Public Consultation – October 2020 – December 2020 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

N/A 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Kevin Bartle 
(Interim Corporate Director, Resources)  Kevin.Bartle@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

N/A 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Spitalfields Neighbourhood 
Plan – Validation of Submission 
 

Ward 
Spitalfields & 
Banglatown; 
Weavers 

Key Decision? 
No 

Summary of Decision The Spitalfields Neighbourhood Plan was formally submitted for consideration 
by the Council on 30 October 2020. The Council is now required to assess the 
submission against the statutory requirements for neighbourhood plan 
submissions, and decide whether the plan should be put forward for further 
consultation and examination. The Council is not required at this stage to make 
an assessment of the suitability of the plan for adoption by the Council. 

 

Page 41



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

22 
 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
16/12/20 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Planning and Social Inclusion (Job Share) - Lead on 
Planning 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

None 
 
The Spitalfields Neighbourhood Forum ran a public consultation between 20 
July and 14 September 2020. This extended beyond the required six-week 
consultation period. Due to the coronavirus pandemic, no public events could be 
held during the consultation period, but leaflets announcing the consultation 
were hand-delivered to every address within the neighbourhood area, an online 
survey was conducted via the forum’s email lists, and the statutory consultees 
were contacted. A copy of the neighbourhood plan was made available on the 
forum’s website, and a copy was sent to the Council along with an 
announcement that the consultation would be taking place. Details of the 
consultation activities (including activities undertaken at earlier stages of the 
neighbourhood plan development process) can be found in Appendices 2-4. 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

Screening Tool carried out 03/11, no further assessment needed 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Jennifer Peters, Marissa Ryan-Hernandez 
(Divisional Director, Planning and Building Control, Place)  
Jennifer.Peters@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Plan Making Team Leader) 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

Appendix 1: Spitalfields Neighbourhood Plan 
Appendix 2: Consultation Statement (including appendices B and D) 
Appendix 3: Consultation Statement Appendix A – Consultation Report by 
Gracechurch Consulting 
Appendix 4: Consultation Statement Appendix C – Commonplace Survey and 
Data 
Appendix 5: Basic Conditions Statement 
Appendix 6: Equalities Impact Assessment Screening 
Appendix 7: SEA/HRA Screening Determination Letter 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Bow bus gateway and timed 
closures exemptions 
considerations 
 

Ward 
Bow East; Bow 
West 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision The proposals for the Bow Liveable Streets project were presented to Cabinet 
on 25 November 2020, the following notes the decisions made and the purpose 
of this report. 

Page 42



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

23 
 

 
This item presents the considerations and recommendations for an exemption 
scheme in respect of vehicles belonging to blue badge holders and sets out the 
options for the operation of the Roman Road bus gateway and Coborn Road 
timed closure. This includes hours of operation and potential exemptions for 
local blue badge holders, carers and potentially other local groups 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
27/01/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Environment and Public Realm (Job Share) - Lead on 
Environment, Cabinet Member for Environment and Public Realm (Job Share) - 
Lead on Public Realm 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

Public 
Key Partners 
Other Directorates 

 
Four-week public consultation with the residents, businesses and key 
stakeholders in the Bow Liveable Streets area.  
 
Consultation documents with paper survey were sent out to everyone within the 
consultation area, as well as hosting a survey online. 
 
Queries were responded to via a dedicated email address. 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

Yes, an EqIA has been carried out for the project based on the results of the 
consultation and for this report in regard to the exemption scheme. The EqIA for 
the Bow project will be updated to reflect the decision of this report and as 
detailed design progresses. 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Inlia Aziz, Kristina Coxall, Lindsey Gibson, Chris Harrison, Nicole Layton 
(Assistant to Chief Executive's PA)  inlia.aziz@towerhamlets.gov.uk, Project 
Centre  Kristina.Coxall@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Executive Support Relationship 
Manager)  lindsey.gibson@towerhamlets.gov.uk, (Liveable Streets Technical 
Director)  Chris.Harrison@towerhamlets.gov.uk, Executive Support Team 
Leader, Place  Nicole.Layton@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

Liveable Streets Bow Cabinet report, 25 November 2020 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Budget monitoring report 2020- Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
No 

Page 43



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

24 
 

21 as at 30th November 2020 
(period 8) 
 

Summary of Decision Budget monitoring report 2020-21 as at 30th November 2020 (period 8) 

 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
27/01/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Resources and the Voluntary Sector 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

N/A 
 
 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

N/A 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

Hitesh Jolapara 
(Interim Divisional Director, Finance, Procurement & Audit)  
hitesh.jolapara@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

N/A 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

No, Unrestricted 
 

Title of Report 
 

Proposal for variation to the 
AEG Presents: Victoria Park 
Commercial Concession Tender 
and Major Events Policy 
 

Ward 
All Wards 

Key Decision? 
Yes 

Summary of Decision The existing contract with AEG Presents for major music festivals in Victoria 
Park is being re-negotiated in light of the impact of the current pandemic. The 
fee structure and an additional optional year in respect of the cancelled 2020 
event are being considered. The proposal to increase the maximum number of 
event days from ten to twelve and increase the capacity of those days which is a 
key decision in that it affects more than two wards and changes the Cabinet 
decision made in 2011 regards capacity of events in Victoria Park. 

 
 

Page 44



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

25 
 

Decision maker 
Date of decision 

Cabinet 
06/01/21 

Community Plan 
Theme 

A borough that our residents are proud of and love to live in 

Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Culture, Arts and Brexit 
 
 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take place 

Procurement 
Legal 
CLT  
MAB 

 
Internal consultation 

Has an Equality Impact 
Assessment been 
carried out and if so the 
result of this 
Assessment? 

No 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 
information 

James Thomas 
(Corporate Director, Children and Culture)  
James.Thomas1@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 
available? 

None 

Is there an intention to 
consider this report in 
private session and if so 
why? 

Partly Exempt  (Part of the report will be exempt) 
The report will include financially sensitive information. 

Page 45



Forward Plan December 2020  
 

 
 

26 
 

 

 

Page 46


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST AND OTHER INTERESTS
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	Agenda
	5.1 Chair's Advice of Key Issues or Questions
	Agenda
	1 6.2 Adoption of the High Density Living Supplementary Planning Document
	2 6.3 Spitalfields Neighbourhood Plan – Validation of Submission
	3 6.4 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman, Determination of Outcome


	5 FORTHCOMING DECISIONS

